Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd

Democratic Services
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Decision Notice

REGENERATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT - URGENCY
ACTION , MONDAY, 23RD MARCH, 2020

Please see below approval of decision as follows:

1. RESOLVEN CANAL CAR PARK - VALE OF NEATH VISITOR
HUB PROJECT - Urgency Action 4NH (Pages 5 - 20)




To seek member approval to carry out relevant procurement
exercises to deliver the Vale of Neath Visitor Hub project at
Resolven Canal Car Park.

That approval be granted:

That the Head of Property and Regeneration be granted
delegated powers:

(1) To commence a procurement exercise(s) to source suitable

(2)

contractors to deliver the construction and digital information
point elements of this project.

To commence a procurement exercise for the granting of an
agreement for lease and lease to operate a café from within
part of the soon to be renovated public convenience building
at Canal Car Park Resolven Neath.

To set the Heads of Terms and for the agreement for lease
and lease to be included in the procurement documentation
issued to the interested bidders

To accept the highest tendered bid. In the event that the
highest tenderer declines the award, delegated authority is
granted to the next highest bid and so on.

To enter into an agreement for lease, and lease with an
organisation taking into account any obligations on the
Authority by virtue of S123 of the Local Government Act
1972.

For Immediate Implementation

Yours sincerely

p.p Chief Executive






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

~ Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board

20t March 2020

Report of the Head of Property and Regeneration
— S. Brennan

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: Resolven

RESOLVEN CANAL CAR PARK - VALE OF NEATH VISITOR HUB
PROJECT

Purpose of the Report:

To seek member approval to carry out relevant procurement exercises
to deliver the Vale of Neath Visitor Hub project at Resolven Canal Car
Park.

Executive Summary:

Member approval is sought to carry out relevant procurement
exercises to deliver the Vale of Neath Hub project at Resolven Canal
Car Park.

The project involves the renovation of the existing public convenience

building to create a café, refurbished public convenience facilities and
a digital visitor information point.

Page 5



The following procurement exercises will be required to be undertaken
in order to deliver this project;

1. Sourcing of suitable contractors to carry out the renovations
to the building and delivery of the digital information point.

2. Sourcing an organisation to lease and operate a café from
within the newly created café space within the building.

Background:

The Authority holds title to the public convenience building at Canal
Car Park Resolven Neath as approximately shown edged in black on
the attached plan.

The Authority has secured funding from Visit Wales’ Tourism Amenity
Investment Scheme (TAIS) to create a visitor hub at the Canal Car
Park Resolven.

The project will involve the conversion and refurbishment of the public
convenience building at Resolven Canal Car Park to provide a “shell
space” suitable for use as a café within that part of the building as
approximately shown hatched black, as well as new smaller public
convenience facilities and a digital visitor information point.

The total project cost amounts to approximately £178,000 with Visit
Wales funding amounting to £128,000. The TAIS scheme is part-
funded through the Welsh Government Rural Communities - Rural
Development Programme 2014-2020 which in turn is funded by the
Welsh Government and the European Union.

The Authority’s match funding for this project, which amounts to
£50,000, has already been approved within the Council’s Capital
Programme.

The existing public convenience facility has been subject to instances
of anti-social behaviour and a permanent, manned, facility at this
location will hopefully discourage this behaviour.

Page 6



The car park is located directly next to the A465 trunk road and in an
area of specific tourism interest within the Vale of Neath. The Canal
Car Park is within close proximity of the Neath Canal and the waterfalls
at Aberdulais, Melincwrt and Pontneddfechan. The availability of car
parking at this location would also further support visits to the Vale of
Neath and the wider county.

Sourcing Contractors for Renovations

The proposal is to undertake a procurement exercise to tender for a
suitable contractor to carry out the renovations to the building and
delivery of the digital information point.

The renovations will include the conversion of the existing toilet
building to create;

1. A café space to be fitted out by the successful leaseholder which
will accommodate approximately 17 covers,

2. 1 male, 1 female and 1 disabled toilet

3. A digital information point which will provide visitors with
information on the range of things to see and do in the Vale of
Neath and wider Neath Port Talbot area.

Lease of Cafe

The Authority proposes to undertake a procurement exercise to tender
for an organisation to enter into a 25 year lease to operate a café at
this location in conjunction with the Procurement Section to determine
who the agreement for lease and lease and should be awarded to.

This successful organisation will also be required to fit out and furnish
the interior of the café space at its own cost prior to opening for use.

It is a requirement of the Visit Wales’ TAIS funding that the Authority
awards the Lease via a tender procurement exercise prior to project
completion on 31st December 2020.

Page 7



The evaluation and acceptance of the successful submission will be
based purely on the best rental bid per annum.

The highest bidding organisation will then be awarded the lease,
subject to obtaining planning permission and/or building regulations
approval for the fitting out and furnishing works.

The highest bidding organisation will then be initially required to enter
into an agreement for lease which will bind the organisation into
entering the lease, subject to obtaining planning and/or building
regulation approval for the fitting out and furnishing works, and
timescales for obtaining such approvals and undertaking the works.

Following the conclusion of the works to the Council’s satisfaction, the
operator would enter into the lease accordingly.

The local Member has been consulted and is supportive of the
proposal.

Financial Impacts:
The granting of the lease will provide a rental income for the Authority.
Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required.

Valleys Communities Impacts:

There are no valleys communities implications that need to be
considered.

Page 8



Workforce Impacts:
There are no workforce implications in relation to the Authority
Legal Impacts:

Due to the fact that we are looking for both a contractor to undertake
the renovation works and also an end-user to operate the Café, there
is a requirement for tendering exercises to be undertaken in order for
the Council to comply with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and
our own Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) Furthermore, due to the
likely value of this contract, it is likely that public advertisement of the
tenders will be required. The Head of Property and Regeneration, in
conjunction with the Head of Legal Services, will ensure that there is
compliance with the CPRs and the Public Contract Regulations 2015.

In addition, in relation to the tendering exercise for the end-user,
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that a Council
shall not dispose/lease of property for a consideration less than the
best that can be reasonably obtained without the consent of the Welsh
Government. A disposal for the purpose of this agreement includes a
lease of longer than seven years. As the proposed arrangement will
be for 25 years, the provisions of S123 become applicable. The Welsh
Government has issued a general consent which allows a Council to
dispose/lease of property at less than the best consideration that can
reasonably be obtained where the Council considers that the purpose
for which the property is being disposed/leased is likely to contribute to
the promotion of the economic, social or environmental well-being of
the whole or any part of its area or of all or any persons residents or
present in its area. In addition, the difference between the unrestricted
value of the property and the consideration actually obtained must not
exceed two million pounds.

The Head of Property and Regeneration, upon taking the advice of the
Head of Legal Services, will need to be granted delegated authority to
make the determination as to whether market value is achieved during
the tendering exercise. It is considered that even if the actual value of
the lease achieved equated to an undervalue, the lease would

Page 9



contribute to the social well-being of the residents of Resolven and
Vale of Neath areas as it will provide access to social location and the
promotion of tourism for the residents and wider members of the
Authority which will be an important resource for these communities. If
members were to approve the recommendation on the basis of the
contribution to social and environmental well-being, the lease could
proceed under the general consent.

In addition, the Head of Property and Regeneration has confirmed that
in this instance it is anticipated that any disposal of the café, by way of
the proposed lease would be less than £2,000,000.

Risk Management Impacts:
There are no risk management issues associated with this report
Consultation:

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external
consultation on this item.

Recommendations:

It is recommended that the Head of Property and Regeneration be
granted delegated powers:

(1) To commence a procurement exercise(s) to source suitable
contractors to deliver the construction and digital information point
elements of this project.

(2) To commence a procurement exercise for the granting of an
agreement for lease and lease to operate a café from within part
of the soon to be renovated public convenience building at Canal
Car Park Resolven Neath.

Page 10



(3) To set the Heads of Terms and for the agreement for lease and
lease to be included in the procurement documentation issued to
the interested bidders

(4) To accept the highest tendered bid. In the event that the highest
tenderer declines the award, delegated authority is granted to the
next highest bid and so on.

(5) To enter into an agreement for lease, and lease with an
organisation taking into account any obligations on the Authority
by virtue of S123 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The procurement of a successful contractor and café operator will
enable the Council to satisfy Welsh Government’'s funding
requirements, thus securing the capital investment needed to create
new provision for visitors to the Vale of Neath.

The letting of the premises for a sustainable alternative use will provide
a rental income and will contribute to the Council’'s tourism
development priorities.

Implementation of Decision:
The decision is for immediate implementation.

Appendices:

See attached Plan.
List of Background Papers:
None.

Officer Contact:

David Phillips, Property and Valuation Manager,

Page 11



Telephone: (01639) 686980, E-mail d.phillips@npt.gov.uk

Page 12


mailto:d.phillips@npt.gov.uk

COMMERCIALF

Car Park ‘Q

Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproductio
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. NEATH PORT TALBOT C.B.C. Licence No. 100023392 Publication date 2014

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



GT obed

Impact Assessment - First Stage

1. Details of the initiative

point.

Initiative description and summary: Vale of Neath Hub at Resolven Canal Car Park.

The project involves the renovation of the existing public convenience building to create a café space,
refurbished public convenience facilities (1 male, 1 female and 1 disabled) and a digital visitor information

Service Area: Property & Regeneration

Directorate: Environment

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No
Service users X
Staff X
Wider community X
Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?
Age X The proposals will have no impact
Disability X L The proposed refurbishment to the public convenience

provision will create 1 new disabled toilet, a direct
replacement for the 1 existing disabled toilet.




9T abed

During construction the toilet building will need to close,
however alternative, temporary provision will be provided
on site for the duration of the works.

The facility is already accessible via wheelchair and
pushchair friendly ramps. The project will also deliver an
accessible café on site.

Gender Reassignment X The proposals will have no impact
Marriage/Civil Partnership X The proposals will have no impact
Pregnancy/Maternity X The proposals will have no impact
Race X The proposals will have no impact
Religion/Belief X The proposals will have no impact
Sex The proposed refurbishment to the public convenience

provision will reduce the number of toilet facilities from 3
male and 3 female to create 1 male and 1 female toilets.

Usage surveys of the toilets undertaken during October
2016 and September 2017 indicate that usage levels at
this site is low in comparison to other public toilet
provision in the county at; 2,436 males, 390 females, 29
disabled uses in September 2017.

The higher figure for the number of male uses could be
attributable to the nature of the antisocial behaviour
which has previously been experienced at this site.

It is envisaged that the provision of 1 disabled (unisex), 1
female and 1 male toilet will meet existing demand in
addition to further increases in demand as a result of
establishing the site as a visitor location.




/T obed

During construction the toilet building will need to close,
however alternative, temporary provision will be provided
on site for the duration of the works.

Sexual orientation X The proposals will have no impact
4. Does the initiative impact on:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X The content within the digital information point will be in both
to use the Welsh Welsh and English.
language
Treating the Welsh X The content within the digital information point will be in both
language no less Welsh and English.
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X The proposals will have no impact
enhance biodiversity brop P
To promote the
resilience of
X The proposals will have no impact

ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of

the wider environment,




gT obed

such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes | No Details

Long term - how the initiative X Th.is _projec.t vyill enable the authority_to create a sustainla.ble use for the

supports the long term well-being of existing building, safeguard the publlc convenience facility, create jobs and

people encourage the growth of the tourism economy within the area. The overall
aim of the capital investment at this site is to encourage more visitors to
the Vale of Neath, its canal network and waterfalls.

Integration - how the initiative X Th.is _projec.t vyill enable the authority_to create a sustain.a.lble use for the

impacts upon our wellbeing existing building, safeguard the publlc convenience facility, create jobs and

objectives encourage the growth of the tourism economy within the area. The overall
aim of the capital investment at this site is to encourage more visitors to
the Vale of Neath, its canal network and waterfalls.

Involvement - how people have X This _projlect has been identified as a priprifty within t.he Neath P_ort Talbot

been involved in developing the Degtlnatlon Management Plan which prlqutlses projects for dellver.y to

initiative achieve the growth of the tourism sector in the local economy. This project
has been subject to consultation with members of the NPT Destination
Management Steering Group which includes representatives from the
public sector and tourism sector within NPT.

Collaboration - how we have worked X Not applicable.

with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions

Prevention - how the initiative will
prevent problems occurring or getting

In recent years the public convenience facilities at Resolven Canal Car
Park have been subject to instances of anti-social behaviour. By investing

4




6T obed

worse

in the site and creating a permanent presence through the on-site cafeteria
it is envisaged that this issue will be abated.

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required X

Reasons for this conclusion

The proposed works will not have any adverse impact on people with protected characteristics. The overall project has a positive
impact on wellbeing objectives.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion

Name Position Date
David Phillips Strategic Property & Valuation
Manager
Completed by 12/03/2020
Karleigh Davies Tourism Manager
Signed off by Simon Brennan Head of Property & 12/03/2020

Regeneration




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 RESOLVEN CANAL CAR PARK - VALE OF NEATH VISITOR HUB PROJECT - Urgency Action 4NH
	4NH -SB Plan for Resolven Canal Car Park
	4NH -SB IIA First Stage Assessment - Resolven Cafe


